

HOUSE BILL NO. 493

INTRODUCED BY NOONAN, PARKER, GALLUS, EATON, SESSO, COHENOUR, KEANE, HARRINGTON,
GOLIE, A. OLSON

A BILL FOR AN ACT ENTITLED: "AN ACT REVISING THE AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY BOND PROGRAM;
CLARIFYING CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH BONDS MAY BE ISSUED; ALLOWING THE MULTIPLIER
EFFECT TO BE USED IN PROJECTING TAX IMPACTS; ELIMINATING EQUIPMENT AS AN ELIGIBLE
EXPENSE FOR A PROJECT; AMENDING SECTION 17-5-820, MCA; AND PROVIDING AN IMMEDIATE
EFFECTIVE DATE."

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA:

Section 1. Section 17-5-820, MCA, is amended to read:

"17-5-820. Authorization of bonds. (1) The board of examiners is authorized to issue and sell general obligation bonds in an amount not exceeding \$20 million in accordance with the terms and in the manner required by Title 17, chapter 5, part 8, for the purpose of financing and acquiring infrastructure improvements as enumerated in 7-15-4288 ~~and equipment~~ for aerospace transportation and technology projects, ~~INCLUDING PROJECTS AT AN AIRPORT OR PORT AUTHORITY,~~ recommended by the department of commerce in accordance with the authority granted to the board by this section. The bonds are in addition to any other authorization to the board to issue and sell general obligation bonds and subject to the conditions set forth in this section.

(2) The department of commerce may request the board of examiners to issue the bonds for one or more specified projects in one or more series, but the total amount of bonds issued may not exceed \$20 million. Bond proceeds are appropriated to the department OF COMMERCE, and the department OF COMMERCE is authorized to acquire or construct the infrastructure improvements ~~or acquire the equipment~~, to contract with the city or county in which a project is located, TO CONTRACT WITH AN AIRPORT AUTHORITY, AS DEFINED IN 67-1-101, A LOCAL PORT AUTHORITY, AS DESCRIBED IN 7-14-1101, OR A REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY, AS DESCRIBED IN 7-14-1102, to contract with a certified regional development corporation, as defined in 90-1-116, or upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the project to contract with the developer of an approved project for the acquisition or construction of the infrastructure improvement ~~or the acquisition of equipment upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the project~~. The plans and specifications for the infrastructure ~~and equipment~~ to be

1 financed from the proceeds of the bonds must be ~~approved by and be acceptable to the department following~~
 2 ~~a review of the plans and specifications of the infrastructure by the architecture and engineering division of the~~
 3 ~~department of administration, but the~~ prepared by an engineer or architect, licensed and bonded in Montana,
 4 and the state must be named as an additional insured under any contract, performance bond, or other
 5 documents for the design of any improvements to be financed by the state. THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS MUST
 6 BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AFTER CONSULTATION WITH THE ARCHITECTURE AND
 7 ENGINEERING DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION. The design and acquisition or construction of the
 8 infrastructure ~~and the acquisition of equipment~~ for approved projects are not, with the exception of Title 18,
 9 chapter 2, part 4, subject to the public procurement requirements contained in Title 18. All construction contracts
 10 entered into for the construction of improvements to be financed under this section must name the state as an
 11 additional insured if the state is not otherwise party to the contract. Infrastructure and equipment All
 12 improvements financed with bond proceeds ~~are~~ must be owned by the state, and the use must be governed by
 13 a development agreement between the state and the developer of the project. The agreement may provide for
 14 the lease or the use of the infrastructure ~~and equipment~~ at less than fair market value, taking into consideration
 15 the number of jobs to be created by the project, the salary range of the jobs, the amount of capital contributed
 16 by the developer, and the projected tax revenue to be received by the state and local governments from the
 17 project over the term of the lease or use agreement. The agreement ~~may~~ must require the contractor to insure
 18 for liability and workers' compensation claims during construction and must provide the project developer with
 19 the right of first refusal for the purchase of any real property secured and improvements financed by the bonds
 20 at fair market value ~~plus reimbursement to the state for any costs incurred in the issuance of the bonds.~~ Fair
 21 market value must be determined by a certified appraiser. For purposes of this section, state and local
 22 governments may not provide telecommunications or other services in competition with private providers unless
 23 private providers cannot provide the services.

24 (3) It is the intent of the legislature that ~~state individual and corporate income taxes and state property~~
 25 ~~taxes generated by the aerospace transportation and technology infrastructure development projects will be at~~
 26 ~~least equal to the projected amount of the debt service payments to be paid by the state for the bonds authorized~~
 27 ~~by this section will be covered by the totality of the taxes generated by the aerospace transportation and~~
 28 ~~technology development projects to be calculated by an economic impact analysis of the projects on state tax~~
 29 ~~revenue over the term of the bonds.~~ Prior to requesting the board of examiners to issue the bonds, the
 30 department of commerce shall determine that the developer of a proposed project has the financial ability to

1 ~~construct and~~ implement the project based upon the audited financial statements of the developer. When
 2 requesting the board to issue the bonds, the department OF COMMERCE shall present to the department of
 3 administration for presentation to the board the following:

4 (a) evidence satisfactory to the board that each aerospace transportation and technology infrastructure
 5 development project has committed itself to locate its project in Montana; and

6 (b) ~~a certificate signed by the director of the office of budget and program planning that the tax revenue~~
 7 ~~to be received by the state from each aerospace transportation and technology development project over the~~
 8 ~~term of the bonds will be sufficient to pay the principal amount of and interest on the bonds issued to assist with~~
 9 ~~the specific project a report by an independent recognized financial forecaster or independent licensed certified~~
 10 ~~public accounting firm~~ A CERTIFICATE SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF BUDGET AND PROGRAM PLANNING
 11 that the proposed project will, over the term of the bonds, generate state individual and corporate income taxes
 12 and state property taxes at least equal to the total aggregate amount of principal and interest on the bonds over
 13 the term of the bonds. In preparing the ANALYSIS FOR THE report on the projected tax revenue from the project,
 14 the multiplier effect may be taken into account, using the number of jobs, the salary levels for the jobs, and the
 15 estimated date of hire for each position that the developer will commit to create as part of the development
 16 agreement. The development agreement must provide that if the developer has not created the total number
 17 of jobs at the estimated salaries by the date specified in the development agreement and assumed for purposes
 18 of meeting the projections, the state may terminate the lease or use of the improvements upon 30 days' notice.
 19 If the department OF COMMERCE is unable to enter into a new lease or use agreement for the improvements that
 20 is advantageous to the state, the state may sell the facility to the highest and best bidder and use the proceeds
 21 of the sale to redeem the outstanding bonds.

22 (4) ~~For the purposes of this section, "equipment" means machinery used in the design, manufacture,~~
 23 ~~repair, and maintenance of aerospace transportation and technology projects. In determining whether to~~
 24 ~~recommend to the board of examiners that improvements should be constructed by the state from the proceeds~~
 25 ~~of the bonds for a project, the department OF COMMERCE may take into consideration only the following factors:~~

- 26 (a) whether the project is eligible for financing;
 27 (b) whether there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate the developer's ability to implement the project;
 28 (c) the projected tax revenue report;
 29 (d) whether the project as proposed and situated can obtain the necessary zoning, building, and
 30 environmental permits required; and

1 (e) whether the project is in the public interest.

2 (5) In recommending the amount of bonds to be issued for a qualified project, the department of
3 COMMERCE shall independently determine that the proposed estimated cost of the project is not in excess of what
4 is required for the project and independently verify the projected costs of designing and constructing the
5 improvements proposed to be financed exclusive of any development fee to the developer. The authorized bond
6 proceeds must be used for projects on a first-come, first-serve basis."

7

8 NEW SECTION. Section 2. Effective date. [This act] is effective on passage and approval.

9

- END -